

Document type: Minutes of the IAIAsa Annual General

Meeting 2014

Event: IAIAsa Annual General Meeting,

Gallagher Convention Centre, Gauteng

Event date: Thursday, 28 August 2014

Event time: 11h45 – 12h45

1.	Welcome	Members were formally welcomed by the facilitator (Sean O'Beirne)
2.	a. Attendance	
	Refer to Attendance reg	isters (Appendix A) – total 159 present.
	b. Apologies	
	Terry Calmeyer Marius Marais Michael Braack Adrienne Edgson Sarah Allen Marita Thornhill Neil Devenish Greg Beyers	
3.	Approval of Agenda	Notification and agenda for this AGM was circulated to the members via e-brief on 29 July 2014 to fulfil the organisation's constitutional requirement for adequate notification. The agenda was accepted without changes.
4.	Minutes of the previous AGM (17 September 2013)	Minutes of the previous AGM were circulated to the members via ebrief on 29 July 2014. No comments or corrections were received. Patrick Sithole proposed acceptance of minutes, seconded by Ntsako Baloyi.
5.	Matters Arising	Patrick Sithole indicated that matters arising from minutes of the previous AGM were all covered in the progress report and agenda items for the current AGM. No objections came forth. Patrick Sithole reminded all present that matters proposed for resolution during this meeting could only be voted on by paid up members.
6.	a. 2013/2014 President's Report by Patrick Sithole	Patrick Sithole thanked the IAIAsa members and NEC for entrusting him to lead the organisation during the 2013/14 year. Patrick outlined IAIAsa's vision and mission and strategic outcomes, and reflected on the 3 priority issues identified at the inception of his term as President: i. Improvement of the organisational form, structure and capacity ii. Strengthening strategic alliances between sectors and disciplines iii. Preparation for Continuous Professional Development (CPD) — Branch events and Draft CPD Programme.
		 Membership increased from approximately 900 members to just over 1000. Jenny Mitchell was acknowledged for her work on the proposed amendments to the Constitution. A lawyer was engaged for assistance with the proposed amendments, which will be presented later by Jenny. It is intended to register IAIAsa as an NPO once the amendments to the Constitution have been adopted. Sue George was acknowledged for the work she put into getting the new website up and running. While some functions are still to be implemented on the new website, such as the members' database, it is a great improvement to the previous one, with a professional look and feel.

- Improvements in IAIAsa's presence in social media (twitter and facebook), with lively discussions taking place on LinkedIn, and prizes (free registration) being awarded on competitions on facebook.
- Unfortunately there were two resignations from the NEC during the year.
- Next year intend to implement formal reporting of NEC Portfolios.
- Sue was acknowledged for co-ordinating the branches and taking over the operational issues following Liz's resignation at the beginning of the year. Sue also represented IAIAsa in Chile this year at the IAIA annual conference.
- Terry was acknowledged for her continued contribution to IAIAsa in her role as past President this year. It was note that she was elected to the committee of IAIA.
- IAIAsa formed new alliances and maintained existing alliances with IAP2sa, SAIEA, UNDP and EAPASA.
- IAIAsa provided input/comment on the Environmental Impact Assessment and Management Strategy (EIAMS) for South Africa and the Draft Regulations for the Planning Profession Act (Act 36 of 2002).
- A draft CPD strategy is in place and will continue to be developed this coming year.
- Kate was acknowledged for her active participation with the student bodies.

Branch Reports:

- KZN: 8 events, membership increase from 168 234
- Limpopo: 4 events, membership increase from 37 to 51
- Free State: 3 events, membership increase from 27 to 34
- Western Cape: 6 events, membership at 213
- Gauteng: 4 events, membership at 353
- Mpumalanga: 2 events, membership increase from 9 to 31
- North West: 6 events, membership at 49
- Eastern Cape: 2 events, membership at 39

b. 2013/2014 Treasurer's Report by Jenny Mitchell

Jenny Mitchell reported that IAIAsa is in a fairly strong financial position. However our overall income decreased from 2.1M to 1.5M. At the upcoming NEC Strat Plan, attention will be focussed on the need to generate additional sources of income, as IAIAsa can no longer rely on the annual conference as the primary source of our funds.

The 2013/2014 annual financial statements were presented, with 2012/2013 figures shown in brackets.

Current assets of R973 079 (R1 059 488) made up of:

- cash R629 438 [current account R69 108; call account R560 330]
- deposits R191 971
- trade receivables R151 670 (R253 806) [conferences R127 554; membership fees R23 660; advertising R456]

Equity and liabilities made up of:

- Capital and reserves of R956 940 (R965 824)
- Trade and other payables of R16 139 (R93 664)

Income R1 583 662 (R2 121 153):

- Conference income R1 072 296 (R1 626 660)
- Membership fees R403 849 (R416 079)
- Internet advertising income R17 385 (R11 398)
- Continued professional development income R46 316 (R36 395)
- Branch income R5 614
- Interest income R38 202 (R30 621)

Expenditure R1 592 546 (R1 862 852) Net loss R8 884 (Net profit R258 301)

Administration and finance R19 691 (R8 087)
Branch events R30 066 (R23 819)
Conference R979 914 (R1 314 955)
Continued professional development R65 548 (R86 929)
Operations R253 847 (R251 454)
Secretariat R243 480 (177 608)

Questions/Comments and Answers

C: Nick King – Requested an explanation for the decline in conference income.

A: Jenny Mitchell - Low conference income is directly related to low attendance. Jenny noted that it is a concern and that the matter is scheduled to be discussed at the NEC Strat Plan after this conference. Jenny clarified that the lower income was not due to unpaid registration fees as in previous years, since strict measures had been applied this year to ensure that this would not happen (everyone present this year has paid in full already, or at least has a purchasing order).

C: Mari de Villiers – Expressed concern that the conference cost this year was too high, and recommended that means to reduce the fees must be investigated.

A: Sean O'Beirne – Confirmed that the matter is on the agenda for discussion by the NEC at Strat Plan this weekend.

C: Nick King - Re-iterated his comment submitted in response to proposed changes to the Constitution that the organisation is obliged to ensure that its investments are in line with its own Code of Ethics.

A: Jenny Mitchell – In addition to the requirements for being a Public Benefit Organisation and a Tax Exempt Organisation, there are strict requirements associated with securing an interest bearing account. Currently IAIAsa has a current and a call account with Standard Bank. If for any reason Standard Bank is seen not to be suitable the members will be required to vote to change banks.

C: Nick King – Advised that enquiries ought to be made with Standard Bank to ascertain whether the institution is investing our account funds in non-sustainable practices (eg. Tobacco, munitions etc.)

A: Jenny Mitchell – Agreed that this would be investigated.

C: It was recommended that IAIAsa needs to look into diversification of revenue streams. We are not doing enough to grow skills as professionals and that we should be looking specifically at exciting

		training opportunities.	
		C : It was recommended that conference invitations go out to a wider	
		audience, and that the theme needs to be considered more carefully	
		to attract better participation, a wider range of sectors, and better	
		opportunities for sponsorship.	
		A: Sean O'Beirne – Noted the comments, and re-iterated that the	
		matters raised would be taken up at the upcoming NEC Strat Plan.	
7.	Amendments to	Janice Tooley explained that in terms of Article 6 of the current	
**	Constitution	Constitution, amendments can be made to it by two thirds majority of	
		AGM attendees. The Constitution stipulates that when joining the	
		organisation, a member agrees to the rules of the Constitution. The	
		Constitution was last amended in 2009. Janice outlined the procedural	
		requirements for amending the constitution, and explained that the	
		procedures had been complied with as follows: The proposed	
		amendments were circulated to the members via e-brief 30 days prior	
		to the AGM, followed by three separate reminders to members to	
		submit comments. Two members submitted comments which were	
		taken into account in the amendments being proposed.	
		taken into account in the amendments being proposed.	
		Jenny Mitchell presented the proposed amendments to the	
		constitution which will fulfil the following main requirements:	
		Ensure that IAIAsa complies with the requirements of the Non-	
		profit Organisation Act 1997.	
		 Ensure that IAIAsa meets the requirements of section 30B of the 	
		Income Tax Act 1962 as required by SARS.	
		 Align the constitution with the vision, mission and strategic 	
		outcomes identified in the IAIAsa Strategy 2015.	
		 Generally refresh and update the constitution to allow for better 	
		management of the organisation.	
		The proposed constitutional amendments are for adoption under	
		section 9 of the agenda. If adopted these amendments would replace	
		and repeal any previous constituting provisions.	
		In addition to the Constitution IAIAsa would be governed by a Code of	
		Ethics, Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Procedure. These documents	
		were in the process of being reviewed and amended and would be	
		published in due course.	
Question	ns/Comments and	C: Nick King – Indicated that proposed amendments were	
Answers	-	satisfactory, but added that he still had reservations about ethical	
		investments – IAIAsa can't be seen to be making unethical	
		investments and advised that this could be accommodated in the	
		Constitution by adding a clause that stipulates that IAIAsa must	
		endeavour to invest its funds with an ethical organisation.	
		A: Jenny Mitchell – agreed to make this amendment to the	
		constitution.	
8.	Introduction of the NEC	Incoming IAIAsa President, Sue George reflected on IAIAsa's vision as	
	2014/2015 by in-	per the 2015 Strategy, which is to be a professional association that	
	coming President Sue	leads Integrated Environmental Management (IEM) in Southern Africa,	
	George	and re-iterated that as an organisation we must give effect to our	
	_	mission which is to: Provide the regional platform for advancing	
		innovation and communication of best practice in IEM so as to further	
		the development of local, regional and global capacity for	
	I	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	

sustainability; Provide leadership for defining quality and enhancing professionalism in the practice of IEM; and promote sound science and integrated participatory decision-making to support sustainable development. Sue acknowledged that in order to achieve this we need the active participation of government, academia, consultants, and our students. Sue indicated that since the NEC Strategic Planning Session was scheduled directly after the conference, we would have the benefit of using the input received at this conference and AGM to guide the NEC going forward.

NEC for 2014/2015:

Executive

Sue George, Patrick Sithole, Jenny Mitchell, Robyn Luyt, Ntsako Baloyi, Sean O'Beirne, Danielle Michel, Janice Tooley, and Kate Leigh Strachan Branch Chairs

Gauteng – Snowy Makhudu Western Cape – Oliver Stotko

KZN - John Richardson

Free State - Neil Devenish (apologies)

Eastern Cape – Brendon Steytler

North West – Carli Steenkamp

Mpumulanga – Greg Beyers (apologies)

Limpopo – Elijah Monyai

Sue introduced and thanked our bookkeeper Therina Thysse, who also responds to account queries.

9. Items for Adoption and Resolutions

a. Adoption of Annual Financial Statements

Proposed: John Geeringh Seconded: Sue George

b. Adoption of amendments to the Constitution

No objections, provided Nick King's request to include the clause as discussed in Point 7 is included.

c. Appointment of Accounting Officer for 2014/2015 (retain Julie Harvey)

Proposed: Robyn Luyt Seconded: Ntsako Baloyi

d. Appointment of Bankers for 2014/2015 (retain Standard Bank)

Proposed: Nick King Seconded: Greg Chandler

e. Adoption of membership fee increase effective 1 July 2015

Discussion:

Patrick Sithole indicated that the NEC recommended that the membership fee be increased as follows from 1 July 2015:

	I	
		 Full Member: R600 Student and Retiree: R240 Nick King questioned the rationale, as the organisation appeared to be in a financially healthy position. Sean O'Beirne explained that the expenses incurred in the last financial year required us to access our financial reserves. Jenny Mitchell indicated that IAIAsa cannot sustain drawing on financial reserves to cover day to day operations. She further indicated that members' expectations are high, and in order to meet these expectations we need to be in a position to employ staff and provide quality branch events. Nick King indicated that the rationale seemed laudable, and advised that in future the rational for membership increases be provided upfront. He stressed the need to look into reducing the cost of the conference. Mari Wolmarans questioned whether we should not be considering alternative income streams before raising membership fees. Sean O'Beirne indicated that the conference needed to be more accessible for the sustainability of the organisation, and that increasing membership fees is a short-term intervention. Each year an increase is avoided, a knock on effect is created for subsequent years. The proposed increase is with a view to sustain the organisation, and to keep future increases to a minimum. Proposed: Peter Teurlings Seconded: Zanele Phoku
10.	Other items from the floor	 Nick King expressed his concern with the organisation of the annual conference. Attendance is low, the programme was received late (week of conference), and being harassed by the conference organizer for payment before being notified of your abstract's acceptance is unacceptable. Gwen Gosney requested that the Awards Portfolio be investigated – people need more time to apply for Awards, otherwise, as in her situation, people are unable to compete due to insufficient submissions. Boyd Escott recommended that IAIAsa should be represented at other similar conferences around the country (eg. Biodiversity Symposium) and vice versa. Sean O'Beirne acknowledged the comments and requested that ideas and suggestions that will contribute to improving future conferences be submitted in writing (operations@iaiasa.co.za)
		11. CLOSURE

APPE NDIX A: ATTENDANCE REGISTER



IAIAsa ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE
Lea Muruvan	073729 0101	ulli
Nisagl Osman	672873 4129	wan
Mendy Shozi	013 866 4013	Boso
Luanilla ud Walt	072 188 9718	A
Abulete Adoms	017 239 8770	A
Kelly Strebel	082 601907	Olesho
Crea Scheiner	083321 4355	Schreim
Richardzu Marijak	0761830642	Manves
Lethukyhula Marondo		Agrand
Magwero Funcus		la za
MYAKALLO MOH	and the second s	abblistage
JEFF MANUEL	0217498802	200.
BONISHA H. MASINTAN	VA 012 358 8895	SITES
	opto 015 290 7067	Exporce.
Victa Mouqu	and the second s	AFOLOG4
	p90 015 290 7083	APOLOGY
Xoliswa Bobe	The state of the s	& Book &
Simon N. Maka	0732498137	the
Sonja van der Mer	me on 23) 230	Elean
NHANINA MAKHATHIN		FIB-
West Moagi	089-548 8637	Di
SLINDILE NEWBERN		@ann
Paul Venter	083 437 8681	N. C.
Chiara D'Egidio		-Colected
Cowen Growney	083 5772031	good.
Aldre Armsha	ng 0828281520	Sunday)
Nicolone Vente		NO TO
Mathys Vosloo	0847483018	(10000
Mailo Masondo	0131800161	

Page 1 of 7



IAIASA ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE
Marti Burger	072 284 9332	(8)
KONAHAHI MELUSHI	076 341 0857	#D-
EVISHOBEM CHIEVELL	083 4900 721	toparen:
Humbulani Muhanganei	0824513620	Metagonei
Rivalani Mbungele	0730322628	Bhome le.
FRANK MATA	0852757527	Merry
THOMBOIL HOBILING	CB3 12783611	Elap '
Kemmone Mofela	079 842 0958	nor
Caroline Sithi	C844698613	1 Dan
Alywani Nemumal	0131654484	Metth Con.
MMAMOHALE KABASA	0744566748	AN
Hlobisck Mylongo	073 424 9881	10 4 CD
Dolly Sebourne	08347/5787	887
KATE LANGUANDS	0523109865	Maria Poser 1
RAKDI SKEU	0823409216	ali-
Lebo Molepe	0835287289	Addite
Rudiani Mukuuli	079 958 0360	Eur
Karen Pokyheter	0723656818	kpogreter.
Irene Hatton	ORZ 611 6618	SH4
A Nerissa Pillay	084-819-7083	Billey
Jacob Shylo	0761917288	35 Gecloo
Robert Ishinbandekani	082 335 0648	Blicanellino
ZAMLE BUTHELEZ	210018 520	NEGYNON
Herbert Kagara		THE STATE OF THE S
Very Gould asony	0745855183	for.
KISA MFALLA	0607603344	Sefalila
Ria Pretonius	0832686344	Mul
Melissa Beker	977 694 5950	0
Elmah Nyhelser	an Historian	ad A
Molusi Neumals	0730606207	de Ast



IAIA58 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE,
PETER TEURLINGS	0124213854	204
Sophia Tale	926831326	Mak
Mpuni Msezne	612 683 1239	X1 e
Thato Shale	012\$831229	tull
Nozipho Maduse	011-587 4225	allogise
Thobatsi Thobatsi	053385 2231 /092923254	guita
Maxwell Denga	011578 6043	Mysengento
LAUREN JAMEN	021 554 5195	Agendor
CANDICE DURB	0832288527	Alin
Boniswa Belot	011 240 8377	ybeur
FLORA MORGODHIOA	08 2 559 3750	Org,
SETENKAE NKOPKOE	082 828 3412	llowe
Jason Chubalala	0710488897	Chillian .
MARRITE GESESEL	082 493 5166 /	1 this
Jacqui Hex	082 560 9661	Then
ANGLISA MHATY	099 315 7751	AND.
Hazel Luko to	060 527 9906	137
VERKENT OU AGESSES	0827996670	1111
EMMY MOLEPO	0828600919	an
Happy Mebasa	072 681 5225	Fellenge
Esca Coeties	0828756800	D.
nothere want of Linde	0828076239_	24-
enette Isthikovim	012 399 9298	tus
Nicolene Fourie	062 5355689	150
anarda um Perren (Bix)	OPS 2800770	#
Lindiwe Motaung	985988 016006252	shoting.
Faith Manto	0112403053	Enjado
Justia Chan	011 240 3048	1 This
KHAKA KHAKA	011 240 3392	SOH!

Page 3 of 7



IAIAsa ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE
KATE STRACHAN	0844134770	J
Danielle Michel	0722598319	THU
John Richardson	0725080906	2
Carli Staenkamp	082 220 8651	Gestoup
ZAMELE PHOKU	0833971861	*
NISAKO BALOYI	082-472-4919	A L
Janice Today	083650 5691	- the
Bendan Steinter	083 766 7514	#
Thoma Thusse	073 798 8554	7 Allyse
Tendamudzimu Munyai	678 155 7758	Mega-
COLBERT MARGORA	079 656 7389	Allegen.
KAMEGELO KWAKWA	076 7555 46	Strakere
Tebogo Rangoeto	076 4946 802	A-
MDANDULEN MEMLIDIUHISO	0713913957	Charles It.
RHULANI KUBAZI	092 972 5632	At Any.
TSHINYADZO MPHEPHY	0734760471	7. Kallyheyden .
Martha Mayimele	019 2897015	Angula
Christma Molego	073 691 39 24	Moloposc
Basedile Letopalo	079 305 4021	extracts,
Maboce Nehogane	084 037 2477	Mejane
Leon Ramatekoa	+26664047711	-200
SIAN COSTHUIZEN	0766568880	Planeture,
Mpho Muswubi	082 5933339	4
Manyloe Reline	0777565 103	MB.

Page 4 of 7



IAIAsa ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE
Lené Grobbelgar	0827277897	Lyollelaw
Nichtles King	0796129579	Dog.
Lisa Otten	073 287 1251	TOTE !
FAMMY MABASA	076369 6015	Hillabosa
Undiaderi Netshiozo		Thistony T. S.
Jo Marie Clark	0852819727	kueno"
Michelle Prakea	082 232 825 2	Verie
JEWIFER SLICK	076742 8576	Duckey
Bono OSCOTI	073 346 8008	18
Kog! Daidoo	0835649285	Nearago
Shaun Davis	0815155184	My yours
Morner Forkie	0828513575	1
Noomures DHEMBA	0764382826	Pro Coa
Shella Muthishi	0724657973	Bladenhi
TENERNI RAMBUST	4 0824798468	THE .
Hanlie Crosnowald	082 4/2 5592	dy.
Some home Danis	012 5999959	4
		+

Page 5 of 7



IAIAsa ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE
RUDEANT RANWE	079 504 2497	Alf
107	NS 0845806147	All
GRACE MOTSHORNE		Com.
MAMBLERIOI MANALE		Donala
Muslima Phasioana	082 432 8687	Mengin
	15: 082 406 3070	The state
Gabrile Hlolgua	ne 0827851793	OF T
Masina Litsogni	0 0739327843	Basing.
NAMO MICOS	i 0712737020	gre-
MATEHODI MOGOROS	0181910450	alleger
BONSERA NOKOMSO	073 967 9804	dialise
Zamalanga Langa	016 865 1733	# 5
	ale 073 479 2405	24/00
Ian Jones	083 6542473	100
		70



IAIASA ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AUGUST 2014 ATTENDANCE REGISTER

NAME	PHONE NUMBER	SIGNATURE
Katherine de Jong	0713558781	Klyforg
Charl Kruger	071599 6950-	- Che
ELITH MONYPI	07132418442	(Ber
GLEG MULLINS	0731748338	By)
Janet Loubser	082 491 3025	Roubter
Abdulhakim Aljanes	5765Z105SLL	1
PATMIK SITHOLE	0768598796	20.
Janny Mitchell	0878046003	Sut well
OHEISTOPHER KANIKI	DESERVOR FROM I AAZ ZAOIBIA	Church.
Kim White	0833456620	twitte
Plaire Blanché	082 445 5438	CB -
Mari delillions	0832858 783	Alla
Robyn Luyt	0826727868	porfut.
Sean O'Beine	0829039751	50mi
JOHN GEECING4	0136327663	(4 jeerfugh
MARI WOLMARANS	0824150289	Tide

Page 7 of 7